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THE STRAND

Original Strand Plot between the
Read House snd the Tile House 63

(See Photos #31 and 32)

Original Plot - 10

The earliest known owner of the 63' plot between the major
part of the present Read House property and the Tile House plot,
was Williem Maurits (Morris), an Englishman from Cornwall, who had
become a Dutch citizen. The plot then included what Is now the
north 17' or 18' of the site of the George Read II house, ERead's
alley, and the south part of the present garden of #54 The Strand.
Maurits was at Fort Casimir in 1655 and perhaps earlier. In that
year he was married to Jannet Thomas, the 16-year old "ward and
daughter" of Thomas Broen (Brown), another Englishman who had ac-

quired Dutch citizenship.

In 1656 Maurits wes made tobacco inspector. At leest part of
his private occupation at the time was dealing in liquors. Maurits
also owned the Tile house site adjoining. He probably sold this
863' plot (adjoining the Tile house site) to the New Dutch directar

of Neav Amstel, Jacob Alrichs, for between the director's arrival

in April 1657 and his death in December 1659, he had bought "house

and lot" on this site.

The property is next recorded in the English period, 1667,
when a patent for it is confirmec to Hendrick Jensen Van Jeveren,

a Dutchman, who in 1656 had been settled on Long Island. Cornelius
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(Plot 10, continued)

Jorrison (George) and his wife Gertie owned house and lot in the
eerly 1670's. aiter Jorrison's :eath, his wife married Gerrit
Ctto, one of the justices of the court. Gerrit and Gertie sold
the property to Jan Harmansen, carpenter, in 1678. Harmansen was
rrobably the sane Jan Harmansen who came tO Mew Amsterdam freno

Holland with his sister Jznnetje in 1€58.

No record of trensfer from Jan Harmasnsen has been discovered.
Haermansen married @ Yew Ceastls wife, Catherine, the widow of Hans
Banes, a property owner in the town. Earmansen was naturalized
by William Fenn in 1683, and wes several times appointed by the
court an appraiser of property. 1n 1684 he bought a lot on Third
Street from Hans Coderns, and two years later disposed of his farm
of 440 acres near Red Lyon. FHe last appears in the records in
1€89. In 1701, house and I ot are in the possession of Joseph
%Wood, gentleman, who hes just been appointed sheriff of New Castle
County be %illiam Penn, and vho may have owned the house and lived
here a few years earlier. 1In 1701, he was granted the river lot

opposite this property.

Joseph %ood waz listed as land owner and taxpayer on Long
Island in 1687 and he and his family anpear in the Long Island
records as early as 1675. In Penn's warrants, Joseph %ood is
called the son of %illiam “ood, who was a member of FPenn's council
from Bucks County, 1684 and 1¢85, and a judge of the provincial

court. After coning to Nav Castle, Joscph .ood acquired interests
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(PFlot 10, continued)

in Cnester end Darby and bought a tract of land end wsrsh eglong
the Lelsvere immedistely north of Yew Lustle, clso the

rroperiy and @ pluntation in Zed Lion Hunared,

Joseph Wcod's desushter, Letitis, wno merricce —amuel Lowaan,

irherited this house in whicl she and her rusband lived. Jossgh
003 died in 1721. <Zeamuel Lownan wes the collector of the port

end In 1722 vwes commissioned a justice of the ccurt for the three

counties of Celaware,

Letitia ¥ood Lownen survived her husband; her brother, Jo-
seph %ood Jr., of Cecil County, executor of their father's est=ate,
administered his sister's estate also, 7?or = debt against it,
this house and | ot were seized and sold in 1734 to the highest
bidder, Dr. John Finney, for 165 pounds. The appraised value had
been 225 pounds. The house like zlmost all early houses, was
built on the north side of the lot, the north line of which was
about 25' south of the present entrance walk on the Tile house
site. The appraisal vslue indicates a substantial dwelling at the
time. Joseph iood Jr. had sold the water |ot opposite to John

Pichardson in 1723.

or. Finney who had his own fine house (nov imstel house) evi-
dently bought for investment, and rented the property. He sold 1In
1771 to Thomas Clark vhose occupation has not veen found. Clark
in 177¢ sold to Joseph Tatlow wWho had & stegse line and may have

had a tavern 224 stage office here., Ha hzd stables at; the beek of
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(Plot 10, contlnued)

the rroperty on Zacond Ztreet. Capiain willlam aull, werchant,
7as the next ownsr, meaber Of the uil family who built rov

houses on Second otreet and on the sazst szide of the Strand.
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Suilid the Keoed house, 2nd provided that
between what he SOld t0 Read and the remsinder of the vlot. The
renaining pert of the prosert; Lull scld the same y2zr to .illlem
irmstrong, innkeeper, as "ell thet brick messuzsge and |0t of 1lz2ng”,
containing 42' on the Strand, 3' of which, from the Strand to the
Green, was an alley or lane for the use of both parties. 4 '"ona-
story frame dwelling® adjoining the brick dwelling on the site
next the alley, as shown on the 1804 survey elevations, is men-

tioned in other indentures, which nay heve been the zarly house

of the Dutch period.

In 1808 Armstronz's tavern property was seized by the sher-
iff. It must have been acquired by Samusl 3=zrr, for in 1817, it
is sold as late of Samuel 3arr to Jzmes R. Zlack, trustse, who
immediately sold it to Dr. Henry Colesberry. #illiam Callehan
bought the brick and frame house on the 42' lot in 1818. So in-
dentures heve Seen found to dete for the succeeding owners. That
the dwellings survived the fire of 1824, and that the property weas
then ownsd by Dr. Jemes Cooper Sr. (who the follouwing y=ar bought
the Morrison house site and erected that large brick dwelling) IS

attested by Dr. Cooper's letter in the Delawere Zazette, May 4, 1824,
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(Plot 10, continued)

thanking his "fellow citizens for their efficient exertions gur-
ing the late fire', by which his dwelling house .u4s suved together
with the adjoining house., (The adjoining house .5 of brick, two
stories, on the south £5' of the Tile hsuse plot - zc shown in the
photograph of the Tile house glot recently discovered by “r. Thooas

Holcomb. )

Except thet the property descended to the heirs sf .r. Jznes
Cooper, search 10 cate has NOt rrovided sufficient inforaatlon to
tell when the house wss torn wown, NOr ywhen the lot came into POS-
session of en owner of the Tile house |ot. This later history

should be easy to find, and wili be added s soon as there iS tiue.

That must have been 2 good brick dwelling was on the plot
when it was zppraised for the court at 225 pounas, before the
sale to Cr. Finney. This house may have been built by Joseph
Wood, 2 prosperous man, or it may have been built originally by
Jan Harmensen, the carpenter, replacing Or adjoining the me-story
wooden house with brick chimney which would have bean charactsris-

tic o tho house on the site in 1655, the time of Wiliiam leurits,

Deteiled and documental history on file
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There is some vestige of this house still remaining as built
into the brick garden wall of #54 the Strenc and recorded in this

report on Photos #31 and #32.



Addenda

Original Strand Plot between the Read House
and tho Tile House

Original - 10 #33 spq #32

Since tho summary of thir plot war written, record has been
found indicating that Joseph Wood acquired this property in two
parts from the heirs of Jan Hermeneon and of Cornelius George,
the house first, #32 and then the adjoining lot #31.

Ard further, that in 1818, Henry Colesberry sold tO William
Callahan the two-story brick dwelling house together with a one-story
frame dwelling house and other improvements, on the west side of
Frent Street, bounded by George Read Esquire and others, the same
premises which lately belonged to Sanuel C. Barr, E50., deceased,
vhich had deer sold for $810 at public sale to Dr. Colesberry,
by Jamee R, Blaek es trustee for Samuel Barr and Elizabeth, his
wife in 1817, with houses, gardens, fences. (Elizabeth wa Elizas-
both Van Leuvenigh Bird, widow of John Bird who died in 1810, after
which she married the Reverend Samuel Barr,

Samuel Barr had bought the property at sheriff ‘nlo.

¥illiam Callshen died intestate, and the property descended
through hi8 rife and children,

The successive deeds indieate that Dr, James Couper zust have

been a tenant only of the property in 1824. |n 1861 sad 18882,
Williem Couper who then owned the Read house, secured the mole Of
thir adjoining property from the heirs of Willism Csllahan.

The alley next t0o the Rsad house, KNOm s Read's alley, wes alss

known for meny yesrs as Uellahen's alloy,
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